



## SMITHFIELD CITY COUNCIL MINUTES December 11, 2024

The Smithfield City Council met in a regularly scheduled meeting at 96 South Main Street, Smithfield, Utah on Wednesday, December 11, 2024. Mayor Monson was in the chair.

Opening remarks Jenn Staker

**Council Members in Attendance:** Wade Campbell, Sue Hyer, Todd Orme, Jenn Staker, Ted Stokes

**City Staff:** Justin Lewis (City Manager), Dana Lazcanotegui (City Recorder), Clay Bodily (City Engineer), Travis Allen (Police Chief), Shawn Bliss (Library Director), Karen Bowling (Library Assistant Director)

**Visitors:** Bob Holbrook, Jesse Vega, Chris Olsen, Dave Forrester, Mike Monson, Jeff Barnes, Caralee Stokes, Lacey Dahlgren, Braygan Hutchison

### Approval of City Council Meeting Minutes from November 13, 2024

\*\*\* Motion made by Councilmember Campbell to approve the November 13, 2024 meeting minutes. Motion seconded by Councilmember Orme Vote 5-0.

\*\*\*

**Yes Vote:** Campbell, Hyer, Orme, Staker, Stokes

**No Vote:** None

### Resident Input

No public comments

### Youth Council Report

Kaisa Olsen reported that the Youth Council recently helped with the Turkey Trot, Storybook Festival, and Chamber of Commerce Night of Giving. They will help with the upcoming indoor triathlon. The Youth Executive Committee will travel to Salt Lake City for a tour during the legislative session.

### Discussion and possible approval of Lacey Dahlgren & Braygan Hutchison as members of the Smithfield Library Board effective January 1, 2025.

\*\*\* Motion made by Councilmember Campbell to approve the appointment of Lacey Dahlgren & Braygan Hutchison as members of the Smithfield Library Board, effective January 1, 2025. Motion seconded by Councilmember Staker. Vote 5-0. \*\*\*

**Yes Vote:** Campbell, Hyer, Orme, Staker, Stokes

**No Vote:** None

**Discussion and possible vote on the request by Jesse Vega for approval of the Final Plat for the Birch Creek Business Park, Phase 1, a (6) lot/unit subdivision located at 475 West 600 South. Zoned GC (General Commercial).**

Mr. Boudrero advised that the request is for approval of the final plat for the first phase of a commercial subdivision on a four-acre property located at 475 West 600 South. The applicant has met all requirements, and the Planning Commission has reviewed the request and recommended approval.

Mr. Jesse Vega said that in this phase, they will be keeping building #1 as one lot. Building #2 will be subdivided, condominium-style, so that each lot will have its own parcel number; this will provide more flexibility with the future lease, sale, and/or rental of the units.

Mr. Boudrero confirmed for Councilmember Stokes that the previous culinary water issue was resolved and the rezone has been approved.

Councilmember Stokes asked about the sidewalk; Mr. Vega explained there would be a sidewalk, streetlight, and sign in front along 600 South. He confirmed for Councilmember Stokes that the HOA (Homeowner's Association) will maintain the common areas, including the park strip.

Councilmember Stokes said that to the extent the Council can participate in the regulation and maintenance of common areas, he would like a precedent to be set that the City expects that those areas will be adequately taken care of.

Mr. Boudrero explained that in this project, the guidelines are clearly laid out and required within the CCRs (covenants, codes and restrictions), which an attorney has reviewed. Councilmember Stokes wants to ensure all projects look good from a curb appeal perspective.

Mr. Vega advised that building #1 has a sprinkler system, building #2 has the foundation, and that sprinkler system has been put in and is stubbed to go into the park strip.

Councilmember Orme asked about the temporary turnaround; Mr. Boudrero said this is part of the first phase and will remain in place until the project is completed and a permanent one is in place. The temporary turnaround will be replaced when the next phase of the project extends to the north.

**\*\*\*Motion made by Councilmember Campbell to approve the request by Jesse Vega for approval of the Final Plat for the Birch Creek Business Park, Phase 1, a (6) lot/unit subdivision located at 475 West 600 South. Zoned GC (General Commercial). Councilmember Hyer seconded the motion. Vote 5-0.\*\*\***

**Yes Vote: Campbell, Hyer, Orme, Staker, Stokes**

**No Vote: None**

**Discussion and possible vote on Ordinance 24-27, an Ordinance establishing a time and place for holding regular meetings during calendar year 2025.**

The tentative 2025 City Council regular meetings shall be held on the below dates beginning at 6:30 p.m. in the City Office Building: Jan 8th, Feb 12th, Mar 12th, Apr 9th, May 14<sup>th</sup>, June 11th, July 9th, Aug 13th & 27th, Sept 10th, Oct 8th, Nov 12th and Dec 10th.

The Planning Commission shall conduct its regular meeting on the third Wednesday of each month during 2025 at the City Office Building, located at 96 South Main, Smithfield, Utah. The meeting shall begin at 6:30 p.m. unless otherwise posted.

Mayor Monson would like to see if there was any opportunity to change the city council meeting start time from 6:30 p.m. to 6:00 p.m. There was no further discussion.

**\*\*\*Motion made by Councilmember Campbell to approve Ordinance 24-27, an Ordinance establishing a time and place for holding regular meetings during the calendar year 2025 as proposed. Councilmember Staker seconded the motion. Vote 5-0.\*\*\***

**Yes Vote: Campbell, Hyer, Orme, Staker, Stokes**

**No Vote: None**

**Selection of Mayor Pro Tempore for calendar year 2025.**

The Council selected Councilmember Campbell to serve as Mayor Pro Tempore for 2025; he will fill in during the mayor's absence.

**Discussion and possible vote on Ordinance 24-25, an Ordinance amending the Smithfield City Municipal Code Title 17 "Zoning Regulations", Chapter 17.81 "Master Planned Community (MPC) Zone, Section 17.81.040 "Rezone Required", and Chapter 17.88 "Planned Unit Developments", Section 17.88.150 "Failure to Perform".**

Mr. Boudrero explained that the Master Planned Community (MPC) and the Planned Unit Development Overlay (PUD) codes stipulate that the approved rezone directly corresponds with the approved preliminary plans. The current Code stipulates that if the approved plans are unused, the City will start the rezone process. It is proposed that the current Code be changed to remove the responsibility of rezoning from the City to the prospective developer in the case of unused plans as the city does not rezone parcels unless they own them. The same wording will be altered in the MPC and PUD sections.

Mr. Lewis pointed out that the Council approves MPC/PUD plans; if any changes are proposed, the process would begin again and come back to the Council for review and possible approval.

**\*\*\*Motion made by Councilmember Orme to approve Ordinance 24-25, an Ordinance amending the Smithfield City Municipal Code Title 17 “Zoning Regulations”, Chapter 17.81 “Master Planned Community (MPC) Zone, Section 17.81.040 “Rezone Required”, and Chapter 17.88 “Planned Unit Developments”, Section 17.88.150 “Failure to Perform”. Councilmember Campbell seconded the motion. Vote 5-0.\*\*\***

**Yes Vote: Campbell, Hyer, Orme, Staker, Stokes**

**No Vote: None**

**Discussion and possible vote on Ordinance 24-26, an Ordinance rezoning Cache County Parcel Number 08-079-0008 from RA-1 (Residential Agricultural 1-Acre) to R-1-12 (Single-Family Residential 12,000 Square Feet). The parcel is located at approximately 450 West 400 North, and is approximately 4.55 acres. The request was submitted by Smithfield City.**

Mr. Lewis explained that Smithfield City is requesting a rezone for the property located at approximately 420 North 450 West. The parcel is currently used for agricultural purposes and is needed for a road connection conforming to the City Master Transportation Plan. Residential and residential agricultural zones primarily surround the property. The long-term plan is to connect 400 North to 440 North; however, there is no timeline set. There are also no current plans to put in the road due to financial reasons. This is the first step in a long process that will allow the Council to make future decisions with this parcel. The Planning Commission has reviewed the request and is recommending City Council approval. The Commission meeting notes were reviewed.

**\*\*\*Motion made by Councilmember Campbell to approve Ordinance 24-26, an Ordinance rezoning Cache County Parcel Number 08-079-0008 from RA-1 (Residential Agricultural 1-Acre) to R-1-12 (Single Family Residential 12,000 Square Feet). The parcel is located at approximately 450 West 400 North, and is approximately 4.55 acres. The request was submitted by Smithfield City. Councilmember Staker seconded the motion. Vote 5-0.\*\*\***

**Yes Vote: Campbell, Hyer, Orme, Staker, Stokes**

**No Vote: None**

**Public Hearing for the purpose of discussing Ordinance 24-28, an Ordinance amending the Smithfield City Municipal Code Title 2 “Administration and Personnel”, Chapter 2.16 “City Officers Generally”, Sections 2.16.160 “Justice Court Judge”, 2.16.030 “Oath of Office”, 2.16.090 “City Manager”, 2.16.050 “Salaries”, Chapter 2.36 “Planning Commission”, Sections 2.36.015 “Planning Department Created”, 2.36.020 “Term of Office”, 2.36.060 “Petition For Change”, and Chapter 2.40 “Board of Adjustment”.**

Mr. Lewis outlined the proposed changes to include:

**2.16.160 JUSTICE COURT JUDGE:** – Change the title to **RESERVED** and remove The office of city justice court judge is hereby created and the person appointed to this office shall act as the justice court judge of the Smithfield City justice court. The justice court

~~judge shall be appointed and shall have such powers and duties as set forth in the Utah Code Annotated, as amended.~~

### **2.16.030 OATH OF OFFICE**

B. Administered: The oath of office shall be administered by the city recorder, ~~any judge, including a justice court judge,~~ or notary public.

### **2.36.015 PLANNING DEPARTMENT CREATED**

~~Remove: There is established a planning department consisting of a city planner, planning and zoning administrator, and other such individuals designated by resolution of the city council.~~

Add: There is established a planning department consisting of a Planning Manager and other such individuals as designated or assigned by the City Manager.

~~Remove: The terms of the planning commission shall be staggered. Each member of the planning commission shall serve for a term of five (5) years and until his successor is appointed, provided that the term of the first members shall be such that the terms of two (2) members shall expire each year. Terms of members of the planning commission shall begin on or before the first Monday in February of each year. The governing body may remove any member of the planning commission for cause and after a public hearing, if one is requested. Vacancies shall be promptly filled in the same manner as the original appointment for the remainder of the unexpired term.~~

Add: Each member of the planning commission shall serve for a term of four (4) years and until his/her successor is appointed. Terms of members of the planning commission, including alternates, shall begin upon the approval date by the city council. The city council may remove any member for cause.

### **2.36.060 PETITION**

Change to: In each instance where any person shall desire to have such a change made, a petition shall be made to the governing body, ~~definitely~~ setting out such request and ~~particularizing~~ detailing the change desired.

### **~~2.40 BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT~~ - Change title to **RESERVED****

### **2.16.090 CITY MANAGER**

1. Appoint And Remove Employees: The city manager may, under the direction of the mayor, have the authority to appoint, employ and remove employees as provided herein. The city manager shall also be responsible for reviewing the status and performance of any personnel being considered for promotion in and discharge, transfer, or demotion from appointment or employment with the city. The city manager shall also perform annual performance evaluations of all appointed officials and employees, ~~except for the city recorder, treasurer, chief of police and fire chief, which shall be performed by the mayor, and~~ except for any others performed by department heads or other city supervisors.

### **2.16.050 SALARIES**

(Wording addition in **bold print**)

A. The salary of the officers of this municipality shall be paid in the amount, **set by ordinance**, and at such time as is ~~set by ordinance~~ **established in the Employee Personnel Manual**.

B. In addition to the salary paid the officers and employees of this municipality, they shall receive the following benefits:

1. Health and accident insurance for themselves and their families on such basis and cost to the employee or officer as the governing body may from time to time establish ~~by resolution~~; in the Employee Personnel Manual.

2. ~~Vacation and sick leave~~ **Personal Time Off (PTO)** on such basis as the governing body may from time to time establish ~~by resolution~~; **in the Employee Personnel Manual**.

3. Participation in the Utah state retirement (**URS**) program on such basis and cost as the Page 3 of 3 governing body may from time to time by resolution establish in the Employee Personnel Manual.

#### **6:58 p.m. Public Hearing Opened**

There were not any comments or questions.

#### **6:59 p.m. Public Hearing Closed**

<b>Discussion and possible vote on <u>Ordinance 24-28</u>.</b>
--

Mr. Lewis explained that this housekeeping ordinance aligns the Code with the process. One item for the Council to consider is the term of a planning commissioner. This will not affect anyone currently serving. Councilmember Campbell likes the 4-year term.

Mr. Lewis clarified that no salaries are being changed; this change will only be referenced where that information can be found.

Councilmember Stokes asked how long the chair of the planning commission serves. Mr. Lewis said he does not think this is specified, but it is usually until the member's term expires or they request a change. Councilmember Stokes noted that as a small business owner, he likes leadership changes, which allows more people to serve in leadership roles. He suggested changing the chair annually or bi-annually.

Mr. Lewis said the Code can be amended and brought back to the Council for approval.

Mr. Boudrero answered for Councilmember Staker that the chair has been selected by the commission in the past. Councilmember Stokes recommended that the chair not be allowed to serve back-to-back times.

Mayor Monson did not know if she agreed with this change and questioned why someone doing a good job should not be allowed to serve longer than one year.

Councilmember Stokes would like to see the opportunity for other members to step up and have the ability to serve in a different role. Councilmember Campbell stated the commission should determine who the chair is; Mayor Monson agreed.

Councilmember Stokes thinks it is good to have leadership rotation in appointed committees. Mayor Monson said she is discussing how commission members are selected in the future and possibly asking people in the public if they would like to be involved, which is a significant step to becoming more involved in city government. This could allow a broader group of people to choose from. The Mayor has contacted people in the past, and the City Council would approve the appointment. Councilmember Stokes pointed out that the previous City Council had no problem turning down recommended appointees because, politically, they did not think certain people were in line with their views. He suggested that there should be some internal discussion before the nomination.

Councilmember Stokes said if the commission chair has the right to stay in his/her position, he does not want them to see this request as them being “ousted”; the intent is to allow others the opportunity to serve. This is one of the reasons he likes the idea of a rotation. Councilmember Orme agreed but also felt that if an individual is doing a good job, it should not be mandated that they cannot stay in that position.

Councilmember Staker would like to develop a better relationship between the City Council and the Planning Commission, as there seems to be a disconnect. Both groups are tasked with service for the betterment of Smithfield. Councilmember Stokes agreed and said some people, from a political standpoint, will not change, which is why political appointments are necessary. He wants to see the Planning Commission be more divisive in their votes and more discussion to help flesh out why decisions are being made. Councilmember Staker would like to understand better what the Commission’s recommendations are based on.

**\*\*\*Motion made by Councilmember Campbell to approve Ordinance 24-28, an Ordinance amending the Smithfield City Municipal Code Title 2 “Administration and Personnel”, Chapter 2.16 “City Officers Generally”, Sections 2.16.160 “Justice Court Judge”, 2.16.030 “Oath of Office”, 2.16.090 “City Manager”, 2.16.050 “Salaries”, Chapter 2.36 “Planning Commission”, Sections 2.36.015 “Planning Department Created”, 2.36.020 “Term of Office”, 2.36.060 “Petition For Change”, and Chapter 2.40 “Board of Adjustment”. Councilmember Staker seconded the motion. Vote 5-0.\*\*\***

**Yes Vote: Campbell, Hyer, Orme, Staker, Stokes**

**No Vote: None**

#### **Discussion and possible vote on Personnel Manual Updates**

Mr. Lewis explained that the change is proposed in Section VI – Rules & Regulations, Article IV – Public Works Department and Parks Division On-Call Policy, A-5 to add the last sentence of “The same will apply if the on-call employee is called out when on-call during a holiday.” This is a clarification as a holiday was not listed in the past in this regard.

Councilmember Stokes asked if on-call holiday pay would be, or should be, double pay. Mr. Lewis said it would be the standard 1.5 times.

**\*\*\*Motion made by Councilmember Hyer to approve updates to the Personnel Manual. Councilmember Campbell seconded the motion. Vote 5-0.\*\*\***

**Yes Vote: Campbell, Hyer, Orme, Staker, Stokes**

**No Vote: None**

**Discussion and possible vote on Resolution 24-07, a Resolution updating the Prevailing Fee Schedule of the City.**

Mr. Lewis explained that the proposed changes are all within the Rec Center. Brett Daniels, Rec Center Director, reviewed and suggested the following increases for 2025 programs. Overall, the increases are small, \$2.50-\$5.00, to help offset cost increases.

Mayor Monson said the Rec Center does a fantastic job with the budget they have.

Mr. Lewis reviewed the priority categories as listed on the schedule.

**\*\*\*Motion made by Councilmember Campbell to approve Resolution 24-07, a Resolution updating the Prevailing Fee Schedule of the City. Councilmember Orme seconded the motion. Vote 5-0.\*\*\***

**Yes Vote: Campbell, Hyer, Orme, Staker, Stokes**

**No Vote: None**

**Initial Discussion of Municipal Code Section 12.24.040 “Plantings”.**

Mayor Monson said many members of the Council have heard how people feel about this topic. There are a few ways to address the concern. The City can do nothing or realize that there is currently a \$3-4 million problem. The estimate of how much it would cost to trim all the trees in the park strips throughout the city. Because this is such a broad topic, tonight’s discussion will be about future tree plantings in the park strip. One option would be to allow residents to plant what they want, from an approved list, but ensure they know that plantings in the park strip are their responsibility. A consensus on how to handle this problem needs to be discussed. The City has a great Tree Committee that can help make recommendations, but one concern is how the City will police and enforce it.

Mr. Lewis said the staff seeks guidance and help with this issue. The Tree Committee webpage has been updated. There is a lot of misinformation, so he clarified that tonight is discussion only; no votes or decisions will be made. The city will not go around randomly removing trees. Possible options would be to do nothing, which the City feels is not appropriate and will only make the problem worse. Not allow trees to be planted in park strips in the future, or allow trees from an approved list. The staff’s biggest concern is how to police this and how areas will be maintained. This is an expensive and growing problem for the City to deal with. Another option is leaving trees in the strip but using the developed list. One concern is that developers often don’t pay attention, and the City doesn’t have time or money to inspect every new tree which is planted.

Councilmember Orme said resident education is an important component. Information about responsibilities should be sent out at least annually.



Mayor Monson said one of the challenges is that in some of the older parts of town, the trees were initially put in and taken care of by the City. When that changed and became the homeowner's responsibility, in some instances, it became quite costly for them to take care of. Future development will need to have better guidelines and plans.

Councilmember Orme agreed and said the area along 250 East is a good example; when it changed from the City taking care of them to the property owners, the trees were not watered, died, and subsequently had to be removed. The trees were behind the resident's fence, and there was no good way to water them.

Mr. Lewis said calls are always received complaining that trees are overhanging into the road or sidewalk. Letters are sent to the homeowners to trim the tree(s). If it is too expensive for the homeowner to take care of, they call in and complain about the idea of being cited for trees they did not put in and cannot afford to take care of.

Councilmember Stokes said the amendment last month put the City in a better position to address urgent needs, which is a good first step. Escalation of past problems needs to stop. If an ordinance is passed and trees are eliminated or must be from a recommended list. A civil liability penalty could be created in the Code (he will have to check with legal counsel), allowing residents/HOA to have some recourse against a developer if improper trees are planted. He agrees with the education aspect. He also thinks the developer should sign a document outlining the installation of trees and what is required. Information about what is expected should be given to every resident upon occupancy so they know their responsibilities. Honing in on neighborhood design can help prevent future problems.

Mr. Lewis received a comment that if a list of trees is developed, the trees should be able to be purchased locally; another suggestion is that trees should be consistent in type and planting similar to Brigham City. Mayor Monson said the concern with the last comment is that they can become diseased.

Councilmember Staker said moving forward seems more straightforward. The challenge is how to address the existing problem. Mayor Monson agreed that addressing the current circumstance is essential, but she wants to keep tonight's discussion about moving forward with a plan for future park strip plantings.

Councilmember Orme suggested having the City Council meet with the Tree Committee. Mayor Monson agreed and suggested having a pre-meeting workshop with the committee to prepare a plan. Jeff Barnes said the Tree Committee will have a meeting in January, and he provided Councilmember Orme with some information. Council Orme can forward the Council's concerns to the committee. Councilmember Stokes agreed that he would like a recommendation from the Tree Committee before further discussion. Mayor Monson asked that suggestions be forwarded to Councilmember Orme.

#### **City Manager Report**

- ✓ Library recertification was approved. The letter of approval was included in the Council packet. The library staff was thanked for all their excellent work.
- ✓ The Douglass Mercantile building is progressing well. The south end is all cleaned out, the natural gas meter has been turned on, and new windows and doors will be

installed later this week.

- ✓ The Youth Center furnace quit working; a new one has been installed.
- ✓ The conversion to .gov emails will happen at month's end. The transition is a big job, and the Council will be informed of the process.
- ✓ Some other cities will be increasing their garbage rates. Smithfield is not planning to increase garbage rates; the last increase was in September 2022, and there is no forecasted change at this time.
- ✓ Annual meeting with Econo Waste. The city has had some calls concerned about the same truck doing recycling/garbage. It was learned that one truck has one route and dumps recycling items in Hyrum and takes garbage to the transfer station on Logan. All trucks are equipped with recording cameras in case of any problems.
- ✓ City offices will be closed on Christmas Eve and Christmas Day.

### **Council Member & Mayor Reports**

Wade Campbell

- ✓ Cache Mosquito Abatement District approved the small property tax increase; there were no negative comments during their public meeting. First increase since 2007.
- ✓ The Library Board will begin meeting next month. Looking forward to working with new members.

Ted Stokes

- ✓ Met with Mayor Monson about trails; there will be a meeting with the Trails Committee at the beginning of January to outline a proposed trail to come down into Smithfield from Bonneville Shoreline.

Sue Hyer

- ✓ Youth Council has been very busy. They are a good example for the youth.
- ✓ Localscapes class will be held on. April 12th at the library.

Jen Staker

- ✓ The First Annual Arts Council Storybook Festival was great; much of the community was involved. Received several good comments.

Todd Orme

- ✓ Thanked Mr. Lewis for the website updates for the Tree Committee. Much more, and easier to find information.
- ✓ Douglass Mercantile building updates moving forward. He appreciates the Historic Society update at last month's meeting and all their great work.

Mayor Monson

- ✓ Council assignments will be kept the same for 2025.
- ✓ Would like to see the Storybook Festival to become a permanent annual event.
- ✓ UDOT (Utah Department of Transportation), after much work, has finally approved a left turn signal on 600 South westbound, northbound, and southbound. This is a problem area, and this will help prevent accidents.

\*\*\* The meeting adjourned at 7:49 p.m. \*\*\*

**SMITHFIELD CITY CORPORATION**

Kristi Monson, Mayor

---

**ATTEST:**

---

Dana Lazcanotegui, City Recorder



**SMITHFIELD CITY CORPORATION**  
**96 South Main**  
**Smithfield, UT 84335**

**AGENDA**

Public notice is given that the Smithfield City Council will meet in a regularly scheduled meeting at 96 South Main, Smithfield, Utah, on Wednesday, December 11, 2024. The meeting will begin at 6:30 PM.

Welcome/Pledge of Allegiance and thought/prayer by Jenn Staker

1. Approval of the City Council meeting minutes from November 13, 2024.
2. Resident Input
3. Youth Council Report
4. Discussion and possible approval of Lacey Dahlgren and Braygan Hutchison as members of the Smithfield City Library Board effective January 1, 2025.
5. Discussion and possible vote on the request by Jesse Vega for approval of the Final Plat for the Birch Creek Business Park, Phase 1, a (6) lot/unit subdivision located at 475 West 600 South. Zoned GC (General Commercial).
6. Discussion and possible vote on Ordinance 24-27, an Ordinance establishing a time and place for holding regular meetings during calendar year 2025.
7. Selection of Mayor Pro Tempore for Calendar Year 2025.
8. Discussion and possible vote on Ordinance 24-25, an Ordinance amending the Smithfield City Municipal Code Title 17 "Zoning Regulations", Chapter 17.81 "Master Planned Community (MPC) Zone", Section 17.81.040 "Rezone Required", and Chapter 17.88 "Planned Unit Developments", Section 17.88.150 "Failure to Perform".
9. Discussion and possible vote on Ordinance 24-26, an Ordinance rezoning Cache County Parcel Number 08-079-0008 from RA-1 (Residential Agricultural 1-Acre) to R-1-12 (Single Family Residential 12,000 Square Feet). The parcel is located at approximately 450 West 400 North and is approximately 4.55 acres. The request was submitted by Smithfield City.
10. Public Hearing for the purpose of discussing Ordinance 24-28, an Ordinance amending the Smithfield City Municipal Code Title 2 "Administration and Personnel", Chapter 2.16 "City Officers Generally", Sections 2.16.160 "Justice Court Judge", 2.16.030 "Oath of Office", 2.16.090 "City Manager", 2.16.050 "Salaries", Chapter 2.36 "Planning Commission", Sections 2.36.015 "Planning Department Created", 2.36.020 "Term of Office", 2.36.060 "Petition For Change", and Chapter 2.40 "Board of Adjustment".

11. Discussion and possible vote on Ordinance 24-28.
12. Discussion and possible vote on Personnel Manual Updates.
13. Discussion and possible vote on Resolution 24-07, a Resolution updating the Prevailing Fee Schedule of the City.
14. Initial discussion on Municipal Code Section 12.24.050 "Plantings".
15. City Manager Report
16. Council Member and Mayor Reports

#### Adjournment

\*\*\*Items on the agenda may be considered earlier than shown on the agenda\*\*\*

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, individuals needing special accommodation for this meeting should contact the City Recorder at (435) 792-7997, at least three (3) days before the date of the meeting.